
TOWN OF 

NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
375 MAIN STREET • NEW LONDON, NH  03257 • WWW.NL-NH.COM 

 
 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

MEETING MINUTES 

October 27, 2008 

 

PRESENT: 

Mark Kaplan, Chair, Board of Selectman 
Larry Ballin, Selectman 
Tina Helm, Selectman 
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 
Carol Fraley, Finance Officer 
Debbie Cross, Intertown Record 
 
The Board of Selectmen signed the following documents at 7:55 AM. 
 
Applications for Building Permits: 

• Town of New London, 373 Main Street (084-090-000), foundation for warming hut – Permit #08-133 
Approved. 

• William C. Todd, 24 Stanley Farm Road (070-024-000) install vinyl, aluminum framed screens in 
existing openings on porch – Permit #08-134 Approved. 

• Robert & Mary Sawyer, 231 Pleasant St. (074-008-000) add door to enclose porch – Permit #08-135 
– Approved. 

• Catherine Mozden Lewis, 810 Pleasant Street (049-001-000) dredge 18 cu yards of material at mouth 
of brook state permit 2003-02015 – Permit #08-136 – Approved.  

 
 Application for Permanent Sign Permits: 

• Katie & George Crozer, 737 Burpee Hill Road (Map & Lot 056-007-000) Crozer & Crozer Orchids – 
2’ x 2’ sign on granite post at end of driveway – Approved. 
 

Application for Temporary Sign Permits: 

• First Baptist Church, Main St. & Information Booth – Holiday Fair – Sat. 11/15/08 -- Approved. 

• St. Andrews Church, 52 Gould Road & Information Booth – St. Nicholas Fair – 12/6/08 -- Approved. 
 

Application for Use of Whipple Hall: 

• American Legion Post 40 – Bob MacMichael for Armistice’s Day celebration 10:00 am – 11:30AM – 
Approved.  

• Town of NL Recreation Dept. – Yoga classes – Wednesdays 5:00 – 7:00 pm November 5th – 
December 17th – Approved. 

• David Cleveland, Christmas Carol Auditions – Saturday November 8th, 3:00 – 6:00 pm – Approved. 
 
Other: 
 

• Disbursement & payroll voucher week of 10/27/08 -   Approved 

• Perambulation for the town line between Newbury and New London, performed in 2005. 
 

Chair Kaplan called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 



Board of Selectmen  October 27, 2008 
Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 4 
 
Citizen’s Advisory Committee: The Board of Selectmen discussed the Citizen’s Advisory Committee 
meeting that had been held the previous Saturday.  Larry Ballin said that there was some discussion about 
the proposed economic development consultant.  Tina Helm said that the consensus at the meeting 
appeared to be that before the Town hired more consultants, it should make use of existing resources, 
such as the ideas and quasi-initiatives generated from the visioning sessions of the Master Plan.  The 
CAC encouraged the Selectmen to take more of a leadership role with the Master Plan by pushing the 
Planning Board to engage the public.  Tina said that there was a lot of energy generated from the 
visioning session and a lot of desire to be involved in subsequent steps, but the subcommittees have not 
been formed or put to use.   

Larry Ballin said that the motive behind the conversation with the CAC was to see if there is any interest 
for more public input in the Master Plan process on economic development, rather than on zoning, 
boundaries, regulations, etc.  He said he thought the question of economic development was well-
received, although there was some sense that New London was a bedroom community and should stay as 
such.  He said that when people discuss economic development in New London, the Shopping Center 
question always comes up, but there was agreement that New London’s needs are growing and that we 
need to be thinking about our economic health.  Larry is concerned that the Planning Board needs to 
incorporate more of that philosophy into the Master Plan, and he thinks that Stephen Heavener could help 
us on this subject just as Ken McWilliams does in other planning areas.  This is an opportunity to broaden 
our scope and a good time to consider it. 

Tina Helm said that a related message she heard is that given the economy, we need to think about every 
dollar spent on behalf of the Town, and if we have internal resources they should be investigated and we 
should slow down on the idea of hiring a consultant from outside.  Larry Ballin said that it may be a 
matter of looking at how we spend our planning budget and that perhaps there is room to spend the same 
money on two consultants instead of one. 

Mark Kaplan suggested that Jessie Levine draft a letter from the Board of Selectmen to the Planning 
Board for the November 11 work session, and that at the meeting tomorrow night (Tuesday, October 28), 
Larry Ballin could mention the Selectmen’s discussion with the CAC.  Jessie Levine thought that it 
sounded like it might make sense for the Planning Board to hold a public update soon to return the results 
of the survey and the visioning sessions to the public.  Larry Ballin suggested extending the due date of 
the survey and passing out the survey at the polls.  Jessie Levine said that might be cumbersome on staff 
(to enter the survey results) but she will check on survey completion figures today. 

Tina Helm said that the CAC also discussed the roundabout and the room was generally positive, 
although there were opinions that there were too many signs.  She suggested that one more informational 
ad should be run in the Shopper as before, although Mark Kaplan asked for a full-page ad (N.B. instead of 
a full page Shopper ad, staff prepared an insert to be mailed with the tax bills). 

Mark Kaplan said that two realtors at the CAC meeting also raised a question about a letter from the 
assessor to property owners selling their homes and stating that the property value had been changed 
based on the real estate listing.  Jessie Levine said that she would look into this subject with the assessor.  
She added that the goal of the assessor, and state law, require property to be assessed based on actual 
conditions, and in order to be fair and accurate across town, if the real estate listings conflict with our 
listings then our listings should be corrected.  Chair Kaplan agreed but thought that an inspection should 
take place prior to any changes being made.   

Finally, Larry Ballin said that Joe McCarthy, owner of Jenna’s Transportation, had volunteered to drive 
people to the polls on Election Day.  Larry announced the telephone number for interested citizens to call. 

Tax Rate Setting:  The Selectmen were joined by Finance Officer Carol Fraley to discuss the tax rate.  
Ms. Levine explained that the tax-rate setting appointment with the Department of Revenue 



Board of Selectmen  October 27, 2008 
Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 4 
 
Administration is on Tuesday, October 28 at 11:00 AM in Concord.  She distributed a handout showing 
the projected tax rate for 2008 and the amount of available surplus: 

Town Tax Rate Calculation 2005 2006 2007 
2008 

Projected 
 

Assessed Valuation    1,032,847,474  1,037,185,237  1,064,981,237  
   

1,063,587,037  
 

       
Proposed appropriations: 6,236,048 7,525,126 8,371,922 7,957,292  
less revenues -2,765,410 -3,416,290 -4,283,588 -3,504,973  
less shared revenues: -16,832 -16,832 -16,832 -16,832  
Plus overlay: 400,000 135,028 100,000 150,000  
Plus veterans’ credits: 83,400 210,500 212,000 210,500  
Amount to be raised by taxes 3,937,206 4,437,532 4,383,502 4,795,987  
Tax Rate w/o Surplus 3.81 4.28 4.12 4.51  
Less Surplus Used 480,000   350,000   335,000  _________  
Net to be Raised by Taxes  3,457,206    4,087,532    4,048,502   4,795,987   

Tax Rate 3.33 3.94 3.80 4.51  

       
In 2008, using surplus of this 

amount: 
Creates new net 

to be raised: 
Divided by grand 

list 
Results in tax 

rate of: 
Leaves surplus 

balance of: 
% of 

budget 
 4,795,987 1,063,587,037   4.51  611,979 8.1% 

-50,000  4,745,987 1,063,587,037   4.46  561,979 7.5% 
-100,000  4,695,987 1,063,587,037   4.42  511,979 6.8% 
-200,000  4,595,987 1,063,587,037   4.32  411,979 5.5% 
-250,000  4,545,987 1,063,587,037   4.27  361,979 4.8% 
-275,000  4,520,987 1,063,587,037   4.25  336,979 4.5% 
-285,000  4,510,987 1,063,587,037   4.24  326,979 4.3% 
-290,000  4,505,987 1,063,587,037   4.24  321,979 4.3% 
-300,000  4,495,987 1,063,587,037   4.23  311,979 4.1% 
-330,000  4,465,987 1,063,587,037   4.20  281,979 3.7% 
-335,000  4,460,987 1,063,587,037   4.19  276,979 3.7% 
-350,000  4,445,987 1,063,587,037   4.18  261,979 3.5% 
-400,000  4,395,987 1,063,587,037   4.13  211,979 2.8% 
-450,000  4,345,987 1,063,587,037   4.09  161,979 2.2% 

 

Jessie Levine reminded the Selectmen that for years, the agreement between the Selectmen and Budget 
Committee was to return no more than 7.5% of the appropriated budget to the taxpayers to offset the tax 
rate, which would leave just enough cash on hand to avoid borrowing.  She recommended against using 
any surplus in 2008, since in 2007 the Town could not make its May 1st payment to the School District, 
and would have had to borrow funds to do so.  Ms. Levine said that the current surplus balance is the 
lowest since she began working for the Town in 2000. 

Chair Kaplan said that he disagrees, and wants to use as much surplus as possible.  He said that the Town 
has the ability to borrow in anticipation of taxes and he thinks that the Town needs to be fair to the 
people.  He recommends using $250-300,000 of surplus.  Carol Fraley said that does not leave enough 
cash, and Jessie Levine said that goes beyond returning unused funds to the taxpayers.  That would be 
returning funds that are necessary for operations.  Mark Kaplan replied that at worse, we would be 
borrowing funds for a few months to pay the school.  Jessie Levine said that we would also need to 
borrow for payroll, utilities, etc. 

Larry Ballin said he would be willing to go to a tax rate of $4.46, which is the 7.5% mark.  He said that 
going forward, the Selectmen and Budget Committee should look at how to save money and trim costs. 
He asked whether the capital costs were necessary, and Jessie Levine said that the capital expenses are 



Board of Selectmen  October 27, 2008 
Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 4 
 
better planned than some operating expenses.  She suggested reviewing the veteran’s credit, which is 
about 21 cents on the tax rate, and the gravel road program. 

Mark Kaplan said there are two proposals on the table: one to go to 7.5% and another to go to 4.8% 
surplus balance.  Larry Ballin said that this is money that the voters have approved to spend, and until we 
receive push back from the voters, we should not create a hardship for staff by reducing the cash flow.  
He said the lowest he would be willing to go is 6.8% of the budget.  Mark Kaplan said he would be 
willing to go up to 5.5%. 

Tina Helm said that she agrees that there should be a priority placed on returning money to the voters, but 
if the result is having to borrow money, there is some expense associated with that.  She said she would 
agree to the 7.5% figure.  Larry Ballin said that he thinks 6.8% is reasonable and is a signal to the 
taxpayers that the Selectmen are trying to give back what they can. 

All three Selectmen agreed on a surplus balance of 6.8% of the operating budget, which means that 
$100,000 of surplus would be used to offset the tax rate.  The projected tax rate, based on this decision, is 
4.42 per thousand. 

Minutes: Larry Ballin moved to approve the minutes of October 14 and October 20.  Seconded by Tina 
Helm and approved 3-0. 

Veteran’s Day: Ms. Levine informed the Selectmen that the American Legion Veteran’s Day event would 
be held on Tuesday, November 11 at 10:00 AM at Whipple Memorial Town Hall.  The Selectmen will 
attend the program. 

Kearsarge Community Center: Larry Ballin gave a brief update on the Community Center project, saying 
that as he said to the Budget Committee last week, it is his feeling that the bond should be held off 
another year when the economic climate may be better.   

Whipple Memorial Town Hall: Jessie Levine asked the Selectmen for guidance for the bid process.  
Would they like to invite specific local commercial or residential contractors to submit bids, and if so, did 
the Selectmen have a preference between commercial or residential?  After some discussion, the 
Selectmen agreed that they would like to give all local contractors an opportunity to bid on the project, so 
they would like to advertise locally.  Jessie Levine said that she would work with Chris Lizotte to prepare 
an ad for the local papers.  Larry Ballin asked if the project would require a performance bond, and Jessie 
Levine replied that per state law, any contract over $10,000 must have a performance bond. 

Political Signs: Tina Helm asked about the political sign for the Sununu event that was placed in front of 
the Information Booth.  Jessie Levine said that sign was placed with an approved permit associated with 
the event on the Town Common sponsored by the local Republican Committee.  This raised a discussion 
about political signs on public property, and Jessie Levine said that the use of the Information Booth is 
governed by the Board of Selectmen and it might make sense to review the policy that has been followed 
in that regard. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 


